

Although Liebeler knew that Eric Rogers told the Secret Service (Ex 1154) that Marina left New Orleans in "a light brown Ford or Chevrolet", with a man in his 40s, short and stocky when he deposed Rogers he asked no such question. That deposition contains no reference to a man and describes the car a "kind of gray stationwagon".

The suspicious character of this omission, which has added importance because the stock man is so suggestive of the man who could go to "fist city", described by Dean Andrews, is not relieved by Liebeler's opening remark, "I think I met you one day." He then said, "We talked to you previously out at the apartment" (possibly a reference to Rogers' and Oswald's-4907 Magazine St. address. Here there is evidence that besides knowing of what Rogers had told the Secret Service, Liebeler had spoken to Rogers in advance of his testimony-and that testimony eliminates reference to the man.

Mr. Rogers stated that he had never had any conversations with Oswald, who would speak to no one and kept to himself. He said that Oswald read a lot and that he was a neat dresser. Mr. Rogers stated that he understood that Oswald had left owing the New Orleans Public Service, Inc., for utilities.

In reply to questioning, Mr. Rogers stated that Oswald frequently leave his apartment during the day but that as a rule he would not be gone for very long. On such occasions, he would use busses as a means of transportation.

Mr. Rogers stated that he was at home on the occasion when Mrs. Oswald and her child left in a light brown Ford or Chevrolet station wagon with a man and woman. He said the man was about in his 40's and was stout and stocky. In reply to questioning, Mr. Rogers stated that he is certain there was a man present on this occasion. He said that Oswald left about 7:00 PM on the day after his wife's departure; that Oswald had two pieces of luggage (large traveling bags) with him when he left; that Oswald was in a hurry and ran to catch a bus at the corner of Magazine and Upperline Sts., almost directly across the street from his apartment. This bus would have been proceeding from the uptown section of New Orleans to the downtown business section of the city.

Mr. Rogers stated that Oswald always talked with his wife in Russian or some foreign language; that he had never seen Oswald with any package which may have contained a rifle. He mentioned the fact that Oswald had on one occasion put up some pro-Castro pamphlets or circulars on the screened porch adjoining his apartment. He said that on occasions Oswald displayed a bad temper and appeared to be abusive toward his wife, judging from the manner in which he would speak to her. He said that Mrs. Oswald seldom left her apartment.

No information was received from any of the above-mentioned individuals which would indicate that meetings had been held at the Oswald apartment at 4907 Magazine Street.

DISPOSITION

This case will be considered closed at New Orleans, unless we are advised that additional information is desired.

ATTACHMENTS

Chief - Two copies of Lykes Bros. S/S Company Passenger Manifest S/S "MARION LYKES" - Voyage No. 110

Dallas - One copy of Lykes Bros. S/S Company Passenger Manifest S/S "MARION LYKES" - Voyage No. 110

988

P.S. With reference to the income available to Oswald during his stay in New Orleans in 1963, apparently Oswald received unemployment compensation from the State of Texas during the time he was in New Orleans. The amount involved is not known to this office, but it is assumed that this information was obtained by the Dallas office. (See Page 18 of SA Vial's report of 12-3-63).

As indicated in report dated 12-9-63 by SAIC Rice, the Federal Bureau of Investigation caused a thorough search to be made at Western Union, New Orleans, but failed to locate any record of money orders having been received by Oswald from any source.

COMMISSION EXHIBIT No. 1154-Continued

COMMISSION EXHIBIT No. 1154-Continued

988

TO: MARION LYKES Voyage: 110 FROM: NEW ORLEANS
Sailing Date: SEPT. 19 1959

Stater No.	Name	Sex	Age	Nationality	Permanent Address	Passport No.	Date Issued	Port of Embarkation	Port of Destination
6759	MR. BILLY J. LORD	M	18	USA	MIDLAND TEX.	1607221	9/18	NEW ORLEANS	LE HAVRE
6761	MR. GEORGE B. CHURCH	M	47	USA	TAMPA FLA.	1605283	9/18	NEW ORLEANS	LE HAVRE
0	MRS. BEAUFORD T. CHURCH	F	42	USA	DO	1605283	9/18	NEW ORLEANS	LE HAVRE
6762	MR. LEE H. OSWALD	M	19	USA	FT. WORTH TEX.	1733242	9/18	NEW ORLEANS	LE HAVRE

COMMISSION EXHIBIT No. 1154-Continued

... I wasn't absolutely sure that was the date he gave me, on Friday by ship. Actually the 19th was a Saturday. And he might have left the 18th. That it took him 12 days to get to Le Havre, that he booked a flight Helsinki but you couldn't fly to Helsinki from Le Havre. You would have to fly from Paris.

Mr. SLAWSON. Actually he flew from London. He went from Le Havre London and then Helsinki.

Miss JOHNSON. By the same ship?

Mr. SLAWSON. No; by airplane I believe. Anyway he disembarked on the ship at Le Havre, as he told you, then went from there to London I believe by airplane, although I am not certain. But then he went by airplane from London to Helsinki.

Miss JOHNSON. Yes; actually he got his visa in London probably.

Mr. SLAWSON. Well, I do know some of these facts, but I would like you to go on the best of your recollection.

Miss JOHNSON. He said nothing about London at all. I never was sure how the hell he got to Helsinki, but he said he went by train from Helsinki to Moscow and he repeated that for 10 days he had been on those vouchers.

Mr. SLAWSON. Did he indicate to you anything about how he got his visa?

Miss JOHNSON. No; not at all. I may well have asked him too. A question and a nonreply, though, are not recorded in my notes, but I may well have asked him. On the other hand I think I would have remembered if he had said anything. If he just evaded the way he evaded a lot, I might not have put it down, because evasion was really quite characteristic of him. But of course the rate. You know there was a businessman's rate of \$12 a day at that time and also the \$30 rate I am telling you is as of that time because it is now \$40. But I do have \$30 written down, so I assumed that he specified that he was there at the \$30 rate those 10 days, not the \$12. No; he said nothing about a visa, and of course I was curious.

Mr. SLAWSON. I have no more specific questions, Miss Johnson. If you have anything at all to add, or any further comments you want to make, please go ahead and do so.

Miss JOHNSON. No; I don't.

Mr. SLAWSON. Thank you very much for coming here.

Miss JOHNSON. Thank you.

TESTIMONY OF ERIC ROGERS

The testimony of Eric Rogers was taken on July 21, 1964, at the Old Civil Courts Building, Royal and Canal Streets, New Orleans, La., by Mr. Wesley J Liebel, assistant counsel of the President's Commission.

Eric Rogers, having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

Mr. LIEBELER. Mr. Rogers, I am an attorney on the staff of the President's Commission. I think I met you one day.

Mr. ROGERS. I remember you, yes, sir.

Mr. LIEBELER. I wanted to ask you a few questions about Oswald. I am guessing you under authority granted to me by the Commission under Executive Order No. 11130, dated November 29, 1963, and joint resolution of Congress, No. 187.

You are entitled to have an attorney if you want to and you don't have to answer any questions if you feel that they are incriminating.

Mr. ROGERS. Well, I can't answer what I don't know. I will tell you just what I told them, you see. That's all I saw.

Mr. LIEBELER. Mr. Rogers, am I correct in understanding that you lived at 4907 Magazine Street during the period last summer when—

Mr. ROGERS. I did; a few months.

Mr. LIEBELER. When did you move there?

Mr. ROGERS. It was around in the—in July, around July.

Mr. LIEBELER. Was Oswald there?

Mr. ROGERS. He was there for a short period of time.

Mr. LIEBELER. You lived right next door to Oswald?

Mr. ROGERS. My apartment was in the front and my window was right next door to his apartment.

Mr. LIEBELER. You met Oswald and came to know him? Did you ever meet him?

Mr. ROGERS. No; I never met him. He didn't bid the time to anyone.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you talk to him or anything?

Mr. ROGERS. No; never did.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you know what his name was?

Mr. ROGERS. Just by mail come in the box on the front.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever talk to his wife?

Mr. ROGERS. She spoke Russian. She did bid the time of day, that's all, but he didn't. He wouldn't bid the time to no one.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did they ever have any arguments that you know of?

Mr. ROGERS. Some spats, but in Russian, looked like. You know what I mean?

Mr. LIEBELER. They spoke Russian and you couldn't understand what they were saying?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes, sir.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever see Oswald have any visitors at his apartment?

Mr. ROGERS. He had no one. Had some kind of a dark fellow asked where he lived.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he appear to be a Cuban?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes; Spanish type of person.

Mr. LIEBELER. Was that in August, do you remember?

Mr. ROGERS. Around that time. I believe it was around that time.

Mr. LIEBELER. Now do you remember anybody else that visited Oswald at his apartment?

Mr. ROGERS. Probably at the time they had this—you know—Fair Play for Cuba, something like that. I think they were radio interviewers, I think. Looked like local people. Didn't look like—heard him saying something about wanting to play on radio. That's all.

Mr. LIEBELER. You don't remember any other ones?

Mr. ROGERS. Not that I know of unless I was at work. I wasn't there all the time.

Mr. LIEBELER. Your wife was in the hospital part of this time, is that correct?

Mr. ROGERS. That's right.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you work at that time, sir?

Mr. ROGERS. No; I wasn't working at that time. See, Mr. Liebel, I am on pension, you see. I am only allowed to make so much a year because of the pension, you see.

Mr. LIEBELER. I see. Did you ever see Oswald sitting on the front porch?

Mr. ROGERS. Oh, yes; with books, reading.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did he read a lot?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBELER. Did you ever see any rifle or firearms of any type in his possession at that time?

Mr. ROGERS. No; I never. We did see one time some—the mailman brought a big package in. I wouldn't say what it was, of course. I guess they checked that through the mail.

Mr. LIEBELER. When was that?

Mr. ROGERS. It was in the summer, some time before he left, somewhere around that time.

Mr. LIEBELER. Oswald's apartment had a little porch in the front?

Mr. ROGERS. Screened porch.

Mr. LIEBELER. It had blinds in it, too, that you could let down, did it not?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

house. He would go in the house.

Mr. LIEBERER. Would it have been possible to sit in that porch and drop the blinds so that people couldn't see you?

Mr. ROGERS. It could be possible. I don't know. I never—I seen him sitting down there and go in and out, coming in and out.

Mr. LIEBERER. We talked to you previously out at the apartment, and my recollection is that you told us that some time in September, I believe, that a station wagon came and picked up Mrs. Oswald.

Mr. ROGERS. That was the time he left town.

Mr. LIEBERER. Tell us about that.

Mr. ROGERS. The station wagon was visible. I called my wife. I said, "Well, he must be leaving." They were packing all the things. Probably left the next night or sometime like I told you, the following night after. Had the two things in his hand and goggles on like he was running out of there. I don't know what he was doing.

Mr. LIEBERER. Tell us about those goggles. Were they something like sunglasses? Describe them.

Mr. ROGERS. I don't know. I couldn't say that.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did you see what license plates the station wagon had on it?

Mr. ROGERS. No, Mr. Liebelier, I couldn't tell you on that. Kind of a gray station wagon. He was putting the packing, everything in that himself.

Mr. LIEBERER. Do you know when the station wagon left?

Mr. ROGERS. Well, I told my wife—she said she might have left early in the morning before we got up, with the lady.

Mr. LIEBERER. You think that she might have left with the lady?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes. Then he left that night or late afternoon. Went out in a hurry. Left all the lights on.

Mr. LIEBERER. Who was in the station wagon? Was there another lady?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did you see the station wagon leave?

Mr. ROGERS. We didn't see it leave, but it wasn't there when he left. There was nobody else evidently.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did you see Oswald at all after the station wagon left?

Mr. ROGERS. No; I didn't see him until that night. He slipped out of there. He was going out to catch the bus across the street. The bus stop is right across the street from us.

Mr. LIEBERER. You did see Oswald come out of the apartment in the evening?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes. We was sitting on the porch at that time.

Mr. LIEBERER. So it is clear to you that Oswald did not leave with the ladies in the station wagon?

Mr. ROGERS. No; he didn't leave with them in the station wagon. It was the following evening he left on the bus with these two handbags.

Mr. LIEBERER. That was in the evening?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBERER. He ran across the street and got on the bus?

Mr. ROGERS. That's right.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did he get on the bus at the bus stop?

Mr. ROGERS. Bus stop on the corner right opposite.

Mr. LIEBERER. Toward the center of the city?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did you see the bags that he had in his hand when he went out?

Mr. ROGERS. My wife seen some of them.

Mr. LIEBERER. (handing pictures to witness). Let me show you some pictures and see if these look like it.

Mr. ROGERS. (indicating). This middle one, I know that ain't the type there.

Mr. LIEBERER. (handing picture to witness). I show you a picture of a bag that has been marked as "Commission Exhibit No. 126," and ask you if that looks like the bag.

Mr. LIEBERER. Does that look like the picture which we will mark Rogers Exhibit 126? It is showing two views of a bag. Was it like the one Oswald had?

Mr. ROGERS. You mean the picture of them.

Mr. LIEBERER. How many did he have?

Mr. ROGERS. He had two of them in my estimation, each one in one hand. They looked like these here to me, to my knowledge. I mean, yes, I don't think it was this type [indicating]. I would say this type [indicating].

Mr. LIEBERER. And you are pointing to No. A-1, which is a picture of "Commission Exhibit No. 126 and do you think he had two bags that looked like "Commission Exhibit No. 126." Did he carry both in one hand?

Mr. ROGERS. One in each hand.

Mr. LIEBERER. As far as you can tell, he did not have a bag similar to Rogers Exhibit No. 1?

Mr. ROGERS. No, no. It was kind of daylight. You could see. You know what I mean?

Mr. LIEBERER. What makes you sure that he didn't have one like Rogers Exhibit No. 1? Is it a different size?

Mr. ROGERS. It was—they both look like the same size, and they were well packed. They were well stuffed. I know they wasn't light. I don't know what he had in them.

Mr. LIEBERER. So in your estimation, he had two bags like Exhibit 126?

Mr. ROGERS. If I am not mistaken, they are the two bags that my wife and I identified when they came over to the house, somebody from Oklahoma. He was transferred down here.

Mr. LIEBERER. An FBI agent?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBERER. They actually brought the bags over?

Mr. ROGERS. They had the pictures like this.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did he show you pictures like these two that I have got here?

Mr. ROGERS. Sure did.

Mr. LIEBERER. They had bags like Exhibit 126?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes. This is the type. That's the green type of looking luggage.

Mr. LIEBERER. You say again that he did not have a bag that looked like Rogers Exhibit No. 1?

Mr. ROGERS. Yes.

Mr. LIEBERER. Now, did Oswald leave as far as you can tell on the same day that the station wagon left, or on the next day?

Mr. ROGERS. Well, they packed that night and, yes; they left on the same day, the following evening.

Mr. LIEBERER. They packed the station wagon on one day and the next day you looked out and the station wagon was gone?

Mr. ROGERS. He left that following evening. I figured he was moving. I don't know. If he was moving, he was supposed to tell the landlord.

Mr. LIEBERER. Did he talk to the landlord about it?

Mr. ROGERS. No; but she knew about it. He didn't talk to her. He didn't talk to nobody. He would give you the money and wouldn't say nothing. He was quiet himself, that's all.

Mr. LIEBERER. (handing picture to witness). I am going to show you a picture that has been marked "Bringing Exhibit No. 1," and ask you if you recognize anybody in that picture.

Mr. ROGERS. Wait. Let me get my glasses on. I can see better this way. [Examining picture.] No, Mr. Liebelier, I don't think. I don't think. No; I don't think I know any one in there.

Mr. LIEBERER. (handing picture to witness). I show you a picture that has been marked "Garner Exhibit No. 1," and ask you if you recognize any individual that is in that picture.